
 

 
 

Agenda 

 

Page 1 

Business, Economy and Enterprise Scrutiny Board (3) 
 

Time and Date 
2.00 pm on Wednesday, 17th January, 2024 
 
Place 
Diamond Rooms 1 and 2 - Council House 
 

 

  
Public Business 
 
1. Apologies and Substitutions   

 
2. Declarations of Interest   

 
3. Minutes  (Pages 3 - 6) 
 

 (a) To agree the Minutes of the meeting held on 8th November 2023 
 
(b) Matters arising 

 
4. Bus Delivery Options  (Pages 7 - 12) 
 

 Briefing Note of the Head of Network Transformation, 
Transport for West Midlands 
 

5. Work Programme 2023/24  (Pages 13 - 16) 
 

 Report of the Scrutiny Co-ordinator 
 

6. Any other items of public business which the Chair decides to take as 
matters of urgency because of the special circumstances involved   
 

Private Business 
 
Nil 
 
 

Julie Newman, Chief Legal Officer, Council House, Coventry 
 
Tuesday, 9 January 2024 
 
Note: The person to contact about the agenda and documents for this meeting is 
Michelle Salmon, Governance Services, Email: michelle.salmon@coventry.gov.uk 
 
 
Membership 
Councillors F Abbott, P Akhtar, T Jandu, A Kaur, A Masih, J McNicholas, R Simpson, 

Public Document Pack



Page 2 

B Singh and R Singh (Chair) 
 
By invitation:  
Councillor J O’Boyle – Cabinet Member for Jobs, Regeneration, and Climate Change 
Councillor A Tucker – City Council Representative on West Midlands Combined 
Authority Transport Delivery Overview and Scrutiny Committee  
 
 
Public Access  
Any member of the public who would like to attend the meeting in person is 
encouraged to contact the officer below in advance of the meeting regarding 
arrangements for public attendance. A guide to attending public meeting can be found 
here: https://www.coventry.gov.uk/publicAttendanceMeetings 
 
 

Michelle Salmon, Governance Services,  
Email: michelle.salmon@coventry.gov.uk 
 
 

https://www.coventry.gov.uk/publicAttendanceMeetings


 
– 1 – 

 

Coventry City Council 
Minutes of the Meeting of Business, Economy and Enterprise Scrutiny Board (3) 

held at 2.00 pm on Wednesday, 8 November 2023 
 

 
Present: 

 

Members: Councillor R Singh (Chair) 
Councillor T Jandu 
Councillor A Kaur 
Councillor A Masih 
Councillor J McNicholas 
Councillor B Singh 

 
Other Members: 

 
Councillor J O’Boyle – Cabinet Member for Jobs, 
Regeneration and Climate Change  

 
Employees (by Service Area):  

 
Law and Governance 
 
Transportation, Highways 
and Sustainability 

 
M Jeffery, M Salmon, A West 
 
 
S Evans, J Seddon 
 
 

Apologies: Councillor F Abbott 
Councillor A Kaur 
Councillor R Simpson  
 

 
Public Business 
 
6. Declarations of Interest  

 
There were no disclosable pecuniary interests. 
 

7. Minutes  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 28th June 2023 were agreed and signed as a 
true record. 
 
Further to minute 3/23 headed ‘Bus Update’, in respect of recommendations 2) 
and 3) the Chair undertook to ensure that the matters were brought to a future 
meeting of the Board and would identify a meeting date for this purpose and would 
also advise Members on the progress of recommendation 4).  
 

8. EV Charging Point Installation Roll-out: Update  
 
The Business, Economy and Enterprise Scrutiny Board (3) received a briefing note 
and presentation of the Director of Transportation and Highways on the progress 
to date of the roll-out of Electric Vehicle (EV) Charging Points across the city.  
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



 

 
– 2 – 

 

There were a number of targets aimed at reducing carbon emissions which had 
been set at regional, national and international level. Coventry City Council’s own 
Climate Change Strategy was currently under development and would set an 
ambitious target of reducing emissions by 2030. The Coventry City Council 
Transport Strategy, adopted in December 2022, was developed in accordance 
with these strategies, and acknowledged that significant changes to the way we 
travel must be taken in order to achieve these targets. 
 
Widespread electrification of public and private travel was one strand of the 
Coventry City Council Transport Strategy, which aimed to reduce carbon 
emissions, and also to improve air quality. 
 
Coventry had seen the highest number of installations of EV charging points in the 
West Midlands by some number and was second only to London in the number of 
operational charge-points, with 958 charge-points and 1,326 sockets available at 
October 2023. A further 450 charge-points would be made operational by April 
2024. 
 
Coventry was also ahead of the WMCA in the adoption of electric vehicles with 
1,597 battery-powered electric cars and LCVs, and a further 1,458 plug-in 
vehicles, accounting for 1.94% all cars and LCVs. This was slightly behind the UK 
average of 2.59%. 
 
44 fast chargers were available at Coventry City Council properties. The Plug-in 
Coventry project with partner EO Charging was creating a network of fast chargers 
available for open use by the public. 
 
There was a multi-stage consultation process which took place once a potential 
location had been identified involving the publication of a ‘Street News’ newsletter 
to residents with information about the proposed installation and details of how to 
respond to consultation. In addition, Ward Councillors were notified of the 
proposals and given oversight of the Street Newsletter prior to being sent out. 
Locations were removed following objection with new locations identified and the 
process begun again. Application to the Office for Zero Emission Vehicles (OZEV) 
was made for funding and once the grant letter was received, a second Street 
News was published with further information. Once locations were agreed, 
National Grid were involved in ensuring an adequate power supply and a letter 
drop to residents then took place inviting responses to the plan to install a 
charging-point in their area. 
 
Enforcement - Traffic Regulation Order/Traffic Management Order processes were 
instigated and followed through, with the accompanying timescales for objection, 
and a report containing the list of objections and recommendations submitted to 
the Cabinet Member for consideration, following which, a decision was made. 
 
The presentation highlighted the following: 
 

 Coventry's Charging Infrastructure Programme 

 Background - first chargers installed September 2018; charger delivery 
using Office for Zero Emission Vehicle funding, chargepoint operator 
investment and CCC investment; Coventry residents reliant upon on-street 
chargepoints for routine charging  

Page 4



 

 
– 3 – 

 

 Strategic context internationally, nationally, regionally and locally 

 Coventry’s Emerging Transport Strategy – supporting the City’s economic 
recovery and enabling long-term growth; delivering a sustainable, low-
carbon transport system; ensuring equality of opportunity; maximising 
health and wellbeing 

 Department for Transport Official Statistics: Electric vehicle charging device 
statistics July 2023 and October 2023 

 Partnership working to deliver EV infrastructure 

 Rapid and residential charger usage combined 

 Developing and EV culture 

 EV Charging Strategy 

 Cenex Outputs – Electric Vehicles (current) 

 Project: Electric Vehicle Charging Infrastructure – Concession Contracts - 
Opportunity Charging, On-street Residential Charging Points, Destination 
Charging Points, Local Electric Vehicle Infrastructure [LEVI project] 

 On-street Residential Charge-point Scheme [ORCS] – Consultation 

 Process for objections 

 Enforcement and Monitoring 
 

In considering the briefing note and the presentation, the Board questioned 
officers, received responses and discussed matters summarised below: 
 

 1,000 public chargers currently installed on the highway, in addition, further 
charging points were available at petrol stations, supermarkets, hotels etc. 

 Ansty Park EV Station – outline business case completed. Lots of interest 
generated in the Station. Work currently be undertaken on waste to energy. 

 Electric buses - 270 electric buses were in operation in the city. All buses 
operating in Coventry would be electric by 2025 and any bus company 
wishing to operate in Coventry after this date would need to comply with the 
City’s standards.  

 Hydrogen vehicles charging to be considered as determined by the vehicle 
market 

 Petrol stations and EV charging Points would remain a requirement for 10 
year+ to support the second/third hand vehicles market  

 Parking in EV charging bays – bays identified by signage installed through 
the Traffic Regulation Order process, were restricted to being used for 
electric vehicles parking only. All other charging bays could be used for the 
parking of any vehicle resulting in very little loss of on-street parking places 

 EV Charging Policy would provide a clear process for dealing with parking 
in charging bays - report on proposed Policy would be submitted to Cabinet. 

 Consultation Process - the wording be revised to make the process clear 
when an objection was received requesting removal of an EV charging 
point. 

 Record of only one charger removed following installation, following receipt 
of an objection 

 Future revenue share element of the Scheme anticipated for the Local 
Authority  

 Opportunities for advertising on rapid charger equipment 

 EV charging tariffs were linked to energy costs and were consistent/aligned 
with charges across the West Midlands region 

 

Page 5



 

 
– 4 – 

 

The Board requested that officers explore advertising opportunities on rapid 
charger equipment, and that, in respect of the Consultation Process, officers be 
requested to revise the wording to make the process clear when an objection was 
received requesting removal of an EV charging point. The Board also requested 
that they receive a further update on the progress of EV Charging Stations, 
including information on work-place EV Charging provision for employees at 
businesses in the city. 
 
RESOLVED that the Business, Economy and Enterprise Scrutiny Board (3): 
 
1)  Notes the Briefing Note and Presentation. 
 
2)  Requests that in respect of the Consultation Process, the wording be 

revised to make the process clear when an objection is received 
requesting removal of an EV charging point. 

 
3) Had no additional recommendations for the Cabinet Member. 
 
4) Requests that they receive a further update on the progress of EV 

Charging Stations, including information on work-place EV Charging 
provision for employees at businesses in the city. 

 
9. Work Programme 2023-24  

 
The Business, Economy and Enterprise Scrutiny Board (3) received a report of the 
Scrutiny Co-ordinator that detailed issues on the Board’s Work Programme for 
meetings of the Board for 2023/24. 
 
RESOLVED that the Business, Economy and Enterprise Scrutiny Board (3): 
 

1) Notes the issues on the Board’s Work Programme for 2023/24. 
 

2) Requests that Progress of EV Charging Stations, including 
information on work-place EV Charging provision for employees at 
businesses in Coventry, be added to the Work Programme. 

 
10. Any other items of public business which the Chair decides to take as 

matters of urgency because of the special circumstances involved  
 
There were no other items of public business. 
 
 
 

(Meeting closed at 3.40 pm)  

  

Page 6



 Briefing note  
  

 

To: Business, Economy and Enterprise Scrutiny Board (3)  
 
Date: 17th January 2024 
 

15. Subject: Bus Delivery Options 
 

 

 

   
 

1 Purpose 

1.1 To provide an update on the ongoing work to consider future options for delivering 
bus services in the West Midlands, which includes assessing the existing Enhanced 
Partnership Scheme, undertaking a Full Franchising Assessment, and 
considerations relating to municipal bus company operations such as those that 
operated before deregulation of bus services in 1986. 

2 Recommendations 

2.1 The Business, Economy and Enterprise Scrutiny Board is recommended to: 

(1) Note the progress being made in considering future options for delivering bus 
services in the region. 

(2) Note the timetable for completing the Full Franchising Assessment in 
preparation for a decision by the WMCA Board in July 2024 to determine if the 
Authority should progress further to audit and consultation as set out in this report. 

(3) Note the progress made through existing Enhanced Partnership provisions led 
and agreed through the former Transport Delivery Committee. 

(4) Note the position associated with the consideration of municipal bus companies. 

(5) Consider whether to make any further recommendations to the Council’s 
representative on the WMCA Board. 

3 Background 

3.1 In 2019, the Combined Authority adopted its Vision for Bus, which established long-
term objectives for better bus services in the region. In early 2020, TfWM 
commissioned work to assess the regulatory tools made available by the Bus 
Service Act 2017 to understand whether the most effective way of delivering this 
vision would be through continued and strengthened partnerships in a primarily 
deregulated environment or whether Franchising would prove a more effective 
option. Since the Vision for Bus was adopted in 2019 there has been substantial 
change in the bus market. A reduction in passenger numbers, partly resulting from 
the Covid pandemic, has impacted revenues, whilst inflation, notably fuel and 
wages, has impacted costs. Bus operators have been, and continue to be reliant on 
increased levels of public financial support. This has reduced the appetite of the 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



   
 

 2 

private sector to take risk and this changing commercial picture is being taken 
account as part of the assessment. 

3.2 The initial assessment of options was considered by WMCA Board in February 
2022 and concluded that Franchising would be likely to: • Give greater control and 
certainty over the delivery of the Vision for Bus objectives • Enable better value for 
money and more transparency around public expenditure, which is proving to be 
substantially higher in a post-covid world. 

3.3 It also recognized the risks associated with Franchising but weighed these up 
against the not unsubstantial risks and significant commitments necessary within 
delivery through a negotiated Enhanced Partnership. 

3.4 As a result, the WMCA Board agreed that work should progress to further consider 
options by way of a ‘Full Franchising Assessment’, which is required by legislation 
before any regulatory change is considered and work began on this in early 2023. 
The legislation requires that the assessment should be taken forward in line with 
the Government’s Green Book approach to business case development ie. 
consideration of the Strategic Case, Commercial Case, Financial Case, Economic 
Case and Management Case. The assessment must consider the scheme in such 
detail that it could be reasonably implemented on the back of a decision to proceed. 
The assessment does not just consider franchising but also how well the Authority’s 
objectives in relation to bus could be met through other delivery approaches, such 
as the status quo Enhanced Partnership or a more ambitious Enhanced 
Partnership, with work also being undertaken on the option for municipalization as 
raised by members within some of the region’s Authorities. 

4 Summary of Regulatory Options 

4.1 Bus services in England (outside of London) were deregulated in 1986. Since then, 
private bus operators have been directly responsible for all aspects of bus service 
provision, including planning and operating bus routes, setting timetables, hours of 
operation and fares. The majority of this activity is undertaken fully commercially (ie. 
not under contract to anyone). Only around 10% of the network is operated under 
contract to the Transport Authority, for services that would otherwise not be 
commercially viable. The Bus Services Act 2017 created new legislation introducing 
the concept of ‘Enhanced Partnership’ whilst also enabling Mayoral Combined 
Authorities to move to an alternative system of ‘Franchising’. In 2021 the 
Government introduced a National Bus Strategy which required Local Transport 
Authority’s to implement either Enhanced Partnership or Franchising in order to be 
eligible for future bus funding. The National Bus Strategy also advised LTAs that 
whilst legislation did not permit them to set up a new municipal bus company they 
could purchase an existing bus company. For this reason, TfWM undertook to 
investigate this further as the Bus Options work is designed to consider the 
evidence that will allow the WMCA Board to make informed choices on the future 
direction of bus policy in the region.  

4.2 In ‘Franchising’, the network in its entirety would instead be planned by the 
Authority and contracts awarded to private bus operators to run services through a 
competitive procurement process, such that the entire network would be operated 
under contract. So, bus services are still operated by private companies, but under 
contract to the Authority – the Authority does not operate the services itself. This is 
often described as ‘competition for the market’ instead of ‘competition in the 
market’. The private sector still operates the services, but they deliver this to a 
specification set by the Authority which determines fares, timetables, frequencies 
and other attributes.  

Page 8



   
 

 3 

4.3 This is different from what might be termed ‘Municipalisation’. Whilst the same 
legislation prevents Local Authorities from setting up new municipal bus companies, 
it could be possible for the Authority to acquire an existing bus company and 
operate it as an arms-length business, however under the existing regulatory 
framework such a company would be competing ‘on the road’ with the private 
sector, and if Franchising were to be implemented an Authority could not award 
contracts to the municipal company without undergoing a competitive process 
through which the private sector could also bid successfully. There is no provision 
for a municipal bus company to be in place and operate services either 
unchallenged by competition in a deregulated environment or awarded contracts 
without undergoing a competitive process within a franchised system. In cities 
where municipal bus companies still operate (eg. Nottingham and Reading), they 
are subject to on-the-road competition from the private sector. As part of an options 
assessment, the Authority can give consideration to whether the presence of a 
municipally owned bus company might help delivery of the region’s objectives in 
relation to bus, both in a deregulated or franchised regime.  

4.4 TfWM, and predecessor Centro, have a long history of partnership working to 
deliver positive outcomes for passengers, and the legislation in the Bus Services 
Act relating to ‘Enhanced Partnership’ was designed in part by government to try 
and embed the West Midlands methodology of productive working between 
Authorities and Bus Operators within a legal framework. This is a statutory 
partnership in which operators, WMCA and Local Authorities are required to 
negotiate a number of binding commitments necessary in order to deliver the 
region’s Bus Service Improvement Plan effectively.  

4.5 This continues to be the region’s chosen approach to delivering bus services, with 
the latest iteration of the region’s Enhanced Partnership Scheme adopted in 2023. 
As well as day-to-day service delivery commitments, this also includes various 
transformational initiatives including significant investment in bus priority (largely 
funded through CRSTS), the commitment from operators to simplify fares – with the 
’Bonfire of Bus Tickets’ implemented during 2023, the first city region outside of 
London to have a fully Euro VI bus fleet (eliminating harmful exhaust emissions 
almost entirely), a commitment to a zero emission fleet by 2030 and a new 
passenger charter. 

5 Operator Input - Enhanced Partnerships 

5.1 The Options Assessment is there to provide the evidence required to make an 
informed decision about the future direction of the regional bus network. As the bus 
network delivers much more than a service for its own sake, and plays a vital role in 
the regional integrated transport system, connecting communities and people to 
places, the options consider the strategic advantages and disadvantages of 
changing to a franchised system.  

5.2 The Options Assessment will include a determination of whether the existing 
Enhanced Partnership model agreed with operators will adequately deliver the 
region’s objectives for better bus services. It will also consider what further 
outcomes could be delivered through pushing the boundaries of partnership further 
still. Operators are being approached on what additional commitments they might 
be able to make and what they would expect Authority’s to deliver in return, to 
assess the viability of this. This will be considered in early 2024 so that the 
proposals are fresh by the time the Full Franchising Assessment is completed in 
order to make an effective comparison.  

 
Page 9



   
 

 4 

6 Operator Input - Municipal Bus Operations  

6.1 The consideration of municipal bus operations is not a formal option within the 
Options Assessment, but is a piece of work being undertaken by TfWM to identify 
how easy this would be and how effectively this may support outcomes. As outlined 
above, establishing a new municipal bus company is not permitted, but there are 
circumstances in which an existing bus company could be purchased. It is the view 
of TfWM that this should not be ruled out as an option in the event of a major threat 
to existing services, but the establishment of a new municipal bus company is not 
an option unless there is a change in legislation and therefore requires no further 
work with bus operators at this stage. 

7 Operator Input – Franchising Assessment  

7.1 Legislation requires bus operators to provide any data required by the Authority in 
order to assist with the development of the assessment. This includes detailed 
revenue and cost data. This will enable TfWM to better understand the cost/benefit 
considerations and risks associated with implementing a franchising approach. It 
has taken longer than anticipated to receive data from operators, partly due to the 
substantial levels of information required to enable robust assessment, but this has 
now largely been received and is being assessed to enable an initial understanding 
of the financial implications in early 2024.  

7.2 A wider market engagement exercise has also been undertaken, including 
operators both within the West Midlands and those who operate in the market 
elsewhere, to understand what their views may be on different options for delivering 
bus services in the region. The responses to this suggest that many operators – 
particularly those not currently operating within the region, would prefer the stability 
and lower risk profile associated with a Franchised system rather than the current 
framework, and if implemented effectively a Franchised system is likely to stimulate 
considerable interest in competition for contracts. 

8 Five Case Model  

8.1 The Assessment is being developed in line with the Green Book Approach, 
considering the following cases.  

8.2 The Strategic Case recognises that bus travel is a means to support wider activity 
in society and considers WMCA’s overall objectives and the importance of bus in 
enabling those. It considers how better bus services directly support the Local 
Transport Plan and what the challenges are in securing improvements, particularly 
limited competition in the market, declining long-term commerciality and the greater 
requirement for public subsidy.  

8.3 The Commercial Case will set out what the effective options might be and what 
interventions may be required to deliver them. This will include a consideration of 
how contracts would be packaged up in a Franchised system (lotting strategy) and 
determining the most effective model for ownership of key assets including depots 
and fleet. It will consider how effective Enhanced Partnership has been in delivering 
outcomes to date and what more could be achieved through his approach.  

8.4 The Financial Case will consider the financial implications of each regulatory 
option, including initial implementation and transition costs along with ongoing 
management and operational costs. It will set out capital and revenue expenditure 
requirements for different options over the appraisal period, any requirements for 
additional funding and an explanation of how this will be secured. For the purposes 
of the Assessment, to ensure a fair comparison between options, in each option the 

Page 10



   
 

 5 

outputs (eg. size of network, age profile of fleet, fares etc.) will be considered to be 
the same.  

8.5 The Economic Case will build on this by considering which option provides best 
value for money, considering not just the cost but wider social and environmental 
benefits. This will reflect on wider work being undertaken by the WMCA on the 
value of buses to society.  

8.6 The Management Case will consider the extent of organisational and resourcing 
change required by WMCA within the different options. If progressed, Franchising 
would result in a major shift in responsibilities. Presently, many activities associated 
with providing bus services are fragmented across a number of organisations and 
opportunities may exist to deliver some of these more efficiently and effectively. The 
Assessment will consider where these opportunities might lie and demonstrate how 
they will be resourced.  

8.7 Across all of the cases, the scheme being assessed will include some key 
assumptions, necessary in order to determine what franchising might ‘look like’ in 
the West Midlands. These assumptions will be developed based on a consideration 
of how the authority could best meet its objectives, but also considering how 
schemes operate elsewhere (eg. London and Manchester) and responses from the 
market engagement exercise.  

9 Timescales 

9.1 Preparation of the Assessment is ongoing, with the next key step being the 
incorporation of modelling data that is being prepared following receipt of financial 
information from operators. The modelling will be refined as we move into 2024 and 
until this has been comprehensively assessed it is not possible to fully understand 
the financial implications of franchising and/or the extent to which risks can be 
mitigated. It is intended that the WMCA Board will consider the Full Franchising 
Assessment in July 2024 for a decision on whether to proceed with external audit of 
the assessment (as required by legislation), alongside public consultation. 
Following audit and consultation there will be further consideration of delivery 
options based on the outcomes of these processes in early 2025, with a go/no-go 
decision at that point. Should a decision be taken to proceed with Franchising it is 
likely that the process to complete the groundwork, develop service specifications, 
undertake procurement and mobilise contracts will take up to three years. 

9.2 With commercial bus revenues impacted as a result of lifestyle changes following 
COVID, coupled with the resulting inflationary pressure impacting industry costs, 
TfWM continue to work closely with operators, utilising both local and central 
government funding resources, to secure a largely stable network until January 
2025. However, there remains significant uncertainty around how challenges may 
be addressed beyond that date, but any interventions will be considered with an 
eye to how they might support the long-term objectives for improved bus delivery, 
serving the region’s citizens.  

10 Financial Implications  

10.1 Budget of £1.5m has been allocated from the CRSTS Capacity Fund to support this 
review, as well as associated audit work if required. The model will review three 
scenarios, the status quo, a strengthened Enhanced Partnership and Franchising, 
to establish which delivery model achieves the best outcome for the region. The 
model will be based on current costs and will review each option against what we 
currently spend, i.e. comparing what could be achieved by each delivery model 
within the same budgetary allocation. As part of this rationale, the proposals for Page 11



   
 

 6 

both the Enhanced Partnership and Franchising, will be based on what is 
considered achievable and necessary outcomes rather than an ideal view of how 
the network could work in the future if finance was not a limiting factor. This is 
considered to be the best approach to provide a realistic, practical and fair basis for 
option appraisal.  

11 Legal Implications 

11.1 The above report provides clear and insightful evidence of the required evaluation 
and due consideration to multiple issues that touch and concern the Mayoral 
Combined Authority in satisfying itself as to the merits of a fully franchised approach 
and informing the organisation’s requirement to effectively evaluate the prospects of 
moving from the current position, with delivery of bus services being provided under 
the current Enhanced Partnership arrangements, and moving towards a fully 
franchised approach for the provision of bus services for the benefit of the region, if 
it were to choose to do so. The approach being followed by the Full Franchising 
Assessment working group is compliant with the processes set out within the Bus 
Services Act 2017 and associated guidance. Accordingly, there are no immediate 
legal implications flowing from this report.  

12 Geographical Area of Report’s Implications 

12.1 The information in this report applies to all geographical areas of the constituent 
Combined Authority Area. The assessment will assume the Franchising Scheme, or 
any other deliver option taken forward, is regionwide. There is a statutory obligation 
to consult neighbouring authorities through the process to ensure there is 
consideration of how any regulatory change in the WMCA area my impact on the 
delivery of bus services in neighbouring areas. 

13 Other Implications 

13.1 The Full Franchising Assessment is also considering HR implications (including 
TUPE and pensions provisions), appropriate procurement mechanisms, investment 
in any ICT system requirements and any governance changes that might be 
necessary to implement Franchising or other regulatory options effectively 

 
 
 
 
Steve Hayes, 
Head of Network Transformation, 
Transport for West Midlands 
email: steven.hayes@tfwm.org.uk 

Page 12



Business, Economy and Enterprise (3) Work Programme 2023-24 

1 
 

 
Please see page 2 onwards for background to items 
 

28th June 2023 

Bus Update 
Work Programme 2023-24 

27th September 2023 - cancelled 

8th November 2023 (moved from 15th) 

EV charging point installation roll-out 

17th January 2024 

Bus Delivery Options 

7th Feb (moved) 

6th March 2024 

Local Air Quality Action Plan including Upper Hill Street/Holyhead Rd consultation 
Business Support – including the work of the Growth Hub 
Very Light Rail Update 

17th April 2024 (new date) 

Home Upgrade Grant 2 and Homes Retrofit Programmes Update 
2024 Tourism Strategy and DMO model 

Suggested items for 2023-24 

Heatline – ready in early New Year 
Economic Development Strategy/Skills Strategy 
Transport Strategy delivery update (March 2024) 
For information only - New NO2 Limits 
Cycling and Walking Plan 
Local Air Quality Action Plan including Upper Hill Street/Holyhead Rd consultation 
Job Shop Employer Support 
Rail Update 

2024-25 

Commonwealth Games Legacy Fund (update due 2024/25) 

Last updated 9th January 2024 

Page 13

Agenda Item 5



Business, Economy and Enterprise (3) Work Programme 2023-24 

2 
 

Date Title Detail Cabinet Member/ 
Lead Officer 

28th June 
2023 

Bus Update Latest position in terms of bus provision in Coventry John Seddon 
Cllr O’Boyle 

 Work Programme 2023-
24 

To consider items for the municipal year 2023-24 Cllr R Singh 
Gennie Holmes 

27th 
September 
2023 - 
cancelled 

   

    

8th 
November 
2023 
(moved 
from 15th) 

EV charging point 
installation roll-out 

Presentation on process of identification and Update on progress so 
far: 

Shamala Evans-
Gadgil  
John Seddon 
Cllr O’Boyle 

    

17th January 
2024 

Bus Delivery Options To consider the options considered for bus delivery in the region John Seddon 
TfWM – Jon Hayes 
Cllr O’Boyle 

7th Feb 
(moved) 

   

6th March 
2024 

Local Air Quality Action 
Plan including Upper Hill 
Street/Holyhead Rd 
consultation 

Changes required as part of the LAQAP to address NO2 levels on 
the Holyhead Rd have been requested by the Board at the public 
consultation stage 

John Seddon 
Cllr Caan/Hetherton/ 
O’Boyle 

 Business Support – 
including the work of the 
Growth Hub 

To include the Growth Hub, Shared Prosperity Fund, as well as 
decarbonisation programme 

Cllr O’Boyle 
Steve Weir/Parmy 
Singh 

 Very Light Rail Update Progress and plans for implementing VLR in Coventry – particularly 
the route proposals and consultation. 

Colin Knight/ John 
Seddon/Nicola Small/ 
Janet Ford 

P
age 14



Business, Economy and Enterprise (3) Work Programme 2023-24 

3 
 

Date Title Detail Cabinet Member/ 
Lead Officer 

Cllr O’Boyle 

17th April 
2024 (new 
date) 

Home Upgrade Grant 2 
and Homes Retrofit 
Programmes Update 

Looking at the how the funding agreed by Cabinet on 29th August 
has been delivered, including the role of social landlords. To include 
SB4. 

Cllr O’Boyle/Cllr 
Welsh 
Rhian Palmer 
Matt Dillow 

 2024 Tourism Strategy 
and DMO model 

To look at the new Tourism Strategy beyond 2023 in more detail, 
including an update on the proof-of-concept model for the DMO. To 
include how links can be made with public transport operators to 
encourage usage at events and attractions. 

Cllr O’Boyle 
David Nuttall  

Suggested 
items for 
2023-24 

Heatline – ready in early 
New Year 

Update on the use of Heatline, income generated, efficiency and 
best use of the resource, how it is contributing to net zero 

 

 Economic Development 
Strategy/Skills Strategy 

To update on implementation of the strategies agreed by Cabinet on 
11th October 2022 

Cllr O’Boyle/Cllr 
Sandhu 
Kim Mawby/Steve 
Weir 

 Transport Strategy 
delivery update (March 
2024) 

To include the TfWM Local Area plan for Coventry including rail links 
between Nuneaton, Kenilworth and Leamington  

John Seddon, TfWM 
Cllr O’Boyle 

 For information only - 
New NO2 Limits 

A request for a briefing note on the governments new NO2 limits as 
soon as they are available 

John Seddon 

 Cycling and Walking 
Plan 

Progress on implementation of the Plan (same agenda as LAQAP) John Seddon 

 Local Air Quality Action 
Plan including Upper Hill 
Street/Holyhead Rd 
consultation 

Changes required as part of the LAQAP to address NO2 levels on 
the Holyhead Rd have been requested by the Board at the public 
consultation stage 

John Seddon 
Cllr Caan/Hetherton/ 
O’Boyle 

 Job Shop Employer 
Support 

To cover the work of the Employer Hub and what support is offered 
to employers in the city to encourage new entrants to work to ensure 
young people from Coventry get access to good jobs. 

Steve Weir/Kim 
Mawby 
Cllr O’Boyle 

P
age 15



Business, Economy and Enterprise (3) Work Programme 2023-24 

4 
 

Date Title Detail Cabinet Member/ 
Lead Officer 

 Rail Update To update on proposals within Network Rail’s 5-year plan that affect 
the city 

John Seddon 
Cllr O’Boyle 

2024-25 Commonwealth Games 
Legacy Fund (update 
due 2024/25) 

– update due 2024/25  

 

P
age 16


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Bus Delivery Options
	5 Work Programme 2023/24

